
Procurement Board  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Procurement Board to be held as follows 
for the transaction of the business indicated. 
David Wilcock 

Monitoring Officer 

 
DATE: Wednesday, 4 August 2021 

 
TIME:  10.00 am 

 
VENUE: 100 Embankment - Cathedral Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
 GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON THE RETURN 

TO FACE TO FACE COUNCIL MEETINGS  

 

(Pages 1 - 2) 

1   Apologies for absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of interest  

 

 

3   To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 28 July 2021  

 

(Pages 3 - 6) 

4   Matters arising  

 

 

5   Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public)  

 

 

5a Request for Approval to Go Out To Tender - Insurance Catastrophe 
Cover  

 

(Pages 7 - 10) 

5b Request for Approval - Contract Award - Fixed Term Support and 
Maintenance Service - Council Tax, Business Rates, Housing 

Benefits and Council Tax Reduction  
 

(Pages 11 - 18) 

5c Request for Approval - Contract Award - Civic Centre Refurbishment - 
Furniture  
 

(Pages 19 - 26) 

6   Any other business - Part 1 (open to the public)  

 

 

7   Date and time of next meeting  
 

Date and venue to be confirmed. 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316 
Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic Services 
Advisor 

E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk 



The return to face to face council meetings from 7th May 2021 
 
The temporary regulations enabling remote meetings expired on 7 May 2021 and the 
Government now requires that we hold meetings of the full council, Cabinet, 
committees, panels and boards (that are open to the public) have to be held in public 
so members of the public can attend in person. 
 
A tremendous effort has gone into trying to ensure that any council meetings taking 
place in person will be held in a COVID-19 secure environment.  Your safety is our 
upmost priority, whilst also supporting transparency, accountability and effective 
decision making. 

The venue for face to face meetings 
All the formal council meetings from 5th July will take place at 100 Embankment 
Cathedral Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ, as this is the most appropriate, suitably sized 
venue available to the city council, where meetings can take place in a COVID-secure 
way.  

COVID-secure face to face meetings 
Listed below are some of the control measures that we have had to put in place at the 
meetings to minimise the risk of the transmission of the virus.  It is very important that 
all persons attending the meetings comply with the following.   
 
1. Please arrive at least 15 minutes before the start of the meeting to allow for 

controlled access to the building and meeting space. 
2. A marshal will be onsite to greet you and will escort you to the meeting. 
3. The meeting will be run in line with Government guidance, and using the principle 

of ‘hands, face and space’. Therefore, you are asked to regularly wash and sanitise 
your hands, wear a face covering at all times unless you hold a medical exemption, 
and please maintain a two metre distance from others at all times whilst in the 
building. 

4. Movement around the meeting spaces will be kept to an absolute minimum with 
pre-defined entrances and exits (the marshal onsite will cover this in more detail 
with you when you arrive). 

5. A vital element of our COVID-secure plans is that everyone attending should 
complete a COVID-19 lateral flow home tests three days before the meeting 
and on the morning of the meeting:  

 

• You can collect or order the home testing kits by: 
o Ordering a box of test kits to be delivered to your home 
o Collecting a box of test kits from a local collection point 

 

• If you test positive before or on the day you were meant to attend the meeting  
under no circumstances should you attend, please email your apologies to 
Democratic Services of your decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk 
 

• If your lateral flow test is positive you will then need to book a complementary 
PCR Test and follow national guidance on self-isolating.   

 
6. Despite all the COVID-secure measures we have put in place there remains a 

residual risk and coronavirus can make anyone seriously ill. For some of you the 
risk is higher, particularly if… 

• you are clinically extremely vulnerable or if they are at significant risk 

Page 1

Agenda Annex

https://www.gov.uk/order-coronavirus-rapid-lateral-flow-tests
https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/coronavirus/how-to-get-tested/book-a-free-rapid-coronavirus-test/
mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/get-coronavirus-test
https://www.gov.uk/get-coronavirus-test


• you have one or more health conditions as a number of risk factors may interact 

as well as health conditions. 
 

You may wish to take medical advice about your particular circumstances, if either 

of the above applies to you before you make a decision about attending face to 

face meetings.   

Travelling to 100 Embankment 

• By foot: A range of walking routes are available. 

• By train: Manchester Victoria Railway Station is a couple of minutes’ walk 
from 100 Embankment. 

• By car: Q-Park Deansgate North, 2 Chapel Street, Manchester, M3 7WJ, is 
located underneath the Embankment development. Parking can be pre-
booked on the website below. 

 
 Deansgate North Parking | Manchester Car Parks | Q-Park 

 
 

Page 2

https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgate-north/


1 

 

Procurement Board Meeting Held at 100 Embankment, Cathedral 
Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ 
 
28th July 2021 
 
Meeting commenced at: 10:03 am 
Meeting ended at: 11:00 am 

 
Present in Person 
Councillors Bill Hinds (in the chair) and Jack Youd. 

 
In Attendance in Person 
Claire Edwards  Democratic Services 

 
In Attendance Via MS Teams 
Jane Anderson  Head of Housing Advice and Support 
Christine Flisk   Procurement Manager 
Chris Hesketh  Head of Financial Management 
Andrew Leigh  Head of Housing and Strategy 
Janice Lowndes  Assistant Director People & Communities 
Jonathan Phillips Building Surveyor 
David Rhodes  Lead Practitioner, Environmental Protection 
Benjamin Rose  Environmental Protection Officer 
Tracy Squirrel  Assistant Building Liaison Officer 
 

1. Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of City Mayor Paul Dennett and Councillors John 
Merry and Tracy Kelly. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest 
There were no declarations in any of the items on the agenda. 
 

3. Minutes of Proceedings 
The minutes of the meeting held on 7th July 2021 were approved as a correct record. 
 

4. Matters Arising 
Three were no matters arising. 
 

5. Decision Items – Part 1 (open to the public) 
 
5(a) Request for Approval – Contract Award – Service, Maintenance and Data 

Management of the GM Combined Air Quality Network 
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Interim Strategic Director for Place seeking approval to 
award the contract for the service, maintenance and data management of the GM Combined Air  
Quality Monitoring Network. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



2 

 

The GM Combined Air Quality Monitoring Network (GMAQN) had been operating successfully since 
2013, with Salford producing the original technical specification needed to go to tender and 
managing the operational budget on behalf of the other nine GM local authorities. This was the third 
time that the contract had been tendered since 2013 and there had been no issues with this 
combined approach. The current agreement of a joint monitoring network arrangement would 
continue as all 10 Greater Manchester local authorities had agreed to continue participating. Salford 
had been selected as the lead for the GM authorities in managing the contracts as per the previous 
eight years. The cost of these contracts would be shared by the other nine GM authorities. 
 
Members expressed their disappointment that the successful bidders were not accredited Living 
Wage employers and asked that conversations continue to be held with them to encourage 
accreditation.  Members also requested that the successful bidders be asked to consider how social 
value issues within the contracts could be maximised for the city. 
 
RESOLVED, THAT: 24 months contracts with two optional extension periods of 12 months each be 
awarded as follows: 
 
Lot 1: Equipment Servicing & Maintenance of the Greater Manchester Air Quality Monitoring 
Network be awarded to Enviro Techology Services Ltd with a per annum estimated average value of 
£60,000, and 
 
Lot 2: Data Management & Ratification of the Greater Manchester Air Quality Monitori ng Network 
be awarded to Ricardo AEA Ltd with a per annum estimated average value of £42,000. 
 

5(b) Request for Approval – Contract Award – Demolition of the Former St George’s RC 
High School, Walkden 
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director for People seeking approval to award 
the contract for the demolition of the former St George’s RC High School, Walkden.  
Since the building closed as a high school, the school was taken over by BBC Northwest as a 
production set for filming various children’s programs. In October 2020 the BBC relocated to another 
facility in the city and, as a result of this, the school had become a prime target for anti-social 
behaviour activities and was being subjected to heavy vandalism, externally and internally. Following 
demolition, options associated with the future use of the St George’s site included both residential 
development and education use. 
 
Concern was expressed that the successful bidder, who had previously been successful in bidding for 
contracts with the Council, was not an accredited Living Wage employer and reference was made to 
the growing importance of this status to the City Mayor and to the Council.   
 
Members were advised that the existing framework was due to be  re-tendered in the near future, in 
respect of which social value considerations would be fundamental to the process and would be 
managed by the Council portal going forward. 
 
Officers were asked to inform the successful bidder of Members’ concerns and to continue to work 
with them in terms of how social value issues within the contract could be maximised for the city. 
 
RESOLVED, THAT: a contract for the demolition of former St George’s RC High School be awarded to 
Connell Brothers Limited with a contract value of £334,000 (full project cost of £390,000). 
 

Page 4



3 

 

5(c) Request for Approval – Stage 1 Procurement Process – Contract Award – 
Constructor Partner to Design and Build a Housing Project at Longshaw Drive, Little 
Hulton 
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Interim Strategic Director for Place seeking approval to 
commit to appointing a contractor to develop costs and designs for housing projects under a two-
stage design and build procurement route. 
 
Salford City Council was working in partnership with Derive to provide affordable housing 
developments in Little Hulton. Under previous appointments the group was working with suitably 
qualified design consultants to provide Architectural services for the development of high-quality 
new homes. As part of this Salford Council had committed to delivering 177 units, 45 apartments 
and 132 houses, with funding to be provided by the Council through a loan agreement and an 
application for Homes England affordable homes funding. It was intended that the homes on 
completion would be transferred to Derive as part of the council’s aspirations for direct delivery.  
 
It was reported that the successful bidder was in the process of applying for accreditation as a living 
wage employer.  Members asked that, once the accreditation process has been completed, the 
positive news be publicised by the Comms Team. 
 
Members referred to the importance of ensuring that the successful bidder was signed up to the City 
Mayor’s Employment Charter and officers agreed to take this forward. 
 
Officers also agreed to further explore the social value considerations outlined in the report, 
specifically in relation to what the provision of 80 apprenticeship weeks would entail and whether 
any opportunity existed for that provision to be increased. 
 
RESOLVED, THAT: A Design and Build contract for a housing project at Longshaw Drive be awarded 
to Crossfield Construction Ltd with a value of £331,347.45 (full project cost of £349,000 including 
surveys and associated costs). 
 

5(d) Request for Approval – Contract Award – Choice Based Lettings Management 
System and On-going Homelessness Prevention and Advice System 
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director for People seeking approval to award 
the contract for a choice-based lettings management system and ongoing homelessness prevention 
and advice system. 
 
In April 2018 the Homelessness Reduction Act was implemented placing new duties on local 
authorities to prevent and relieve homelessness. Local authorities were required to report quarte rly 
on their homelessness activity to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG), previously known as the P1E. With the new legislation came new reporting requirements 
to include the additional duties placed on local authorities, now known as H-CLIC, requiring an 
updated case management system. Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) was successful 
in securing new burdens funding on behalf of all ten Greater Manchester authorities and procured, 
on their behalf, a new case management system from Locata, HPA2, with each authority having its 
own system. 
 
The advertising and allocation of social housing in Salford was managed through a choice -based 
lettings (CBL) system, currently an in-house web-based system, Salford Home Search, managed by 
the Housing Options Service on behalf of the registered providers operating in the city. The current 

Page 5



4 

 

system was entirely separate from the HPA2 homelessness case management system and therefore 
when a homelessness case was opened on the HPA2 system and the applicant required assistance 
with securing social housing, a separate application had to be registered on Salford Home Search 
resulting in time consuming duplication. 
 
The purchase of the Locata CBL module would be a ‘bolt on’ to the existing HPA2 system. It would be 
possible to pull information from one system to another thereby ending the need for duplicate 
inputting. It allowed for some functions to be automated that on the existing system had to be done 
manually. 
 
It was established that, with regard to the choice-based lettings system, existing users would be 
required to re-register on the new system.  Members referred to the need to ensure that this 
requirement was clearly publicised by the Communications Team at the appropriate time.   
 
Members established that Registered Providers in the city had been consulted on the new system 
from an early stage and a user group had been involved in testing the new system.  Members also 
established that the Lead Member for Housing had been involved from an early stage and was very 
supportive of moving to the new system. 
 
RESOLVED, THAT: a 24 months’ contract with two optional extension periods of 12 months each for 
a choice-based lettings management systems and on-going homelessness prevention and advice 
system be awarded to Locata Housing Services (Limited) with full project value of £99,400. 

 
5(e) Request for Approval – Contract Award – Internal Refurbishment of the Civic 
Centre, Swinton 
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Interim Strategic Director for Place seeking approval to 
award the contract for partial refurbishment of the Civic Centre, Swinton. 
 
The current accommodation on the civic centre campus was outdated and did not provide suitable 
workspaces that were in alignment with the Council’s corporate strategy to enable the workforce to 
work smarter. Refurbishment of the accommodation would support the implementation of the 
MyWork principles and programme. The refurbishment to the accommodation in Unity House, 
Innovation House and Phase 1 of Civic Centre would be completed to a corporate standard that 
could be applied to any workplace in the Council’s portfolio.  
 
Reference was made to the final paragraph of Section 3 of the report (Social Value – Page 47 of the 
agenda pack), which indicated that the successful contractor was not a Salford based SME and that 
the outputs set out in the report would be managed and monitored through a project specific social 
value plan.  Members were provided with assurance from officers that information would continue 
to be sought with a view to ensuring the maximisation of social value for the residents of the city. 
 
RESOLVED, THAT: a contract for the partial internal refurbishment of the Civic Centre, Swinton be 
awarded to Seddon Construction Ltd with a value of £201,653.11 (full project cost of £222,750.00).  
 

Page 6



1 
 

Part 1: Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 

 
The Strategic Director of Service Reform 

 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 

 
Wednesday 4th August 2021 

 

 
 

TITLE: Approval to go out to competition to purchase insurance catastrophe cover.  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

That Procurement Board grant authority for the purchase of a five-year long-term 
insurance agreement to provide catastrophe cover for the Councils three main Classes 

of Business (Property, Liability and Motor) to be procured in accordance with the 
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules via a mini-competition tender through the 
Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation Insurance Framework.  All suppliers will be invited 

to bid. 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 

Existing insurance Long Term Agreements (LTA's) are due to end on January 31st 
2022, for combined liabilities (employers and public) and motor and property cover. If 

permission is given to go out to tender, a report on the outcome will be presented in 
December 2021 or at the latest January 2022.  In the meantime, this report sets out 
the proposal in more detail below. 

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  

Risk Management Strategy 

Actuarial report. 

 

KEY DECISION:  

 
No 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5a



2 
 

DETAILS:  
 
1.1. Background 

 

Risk Management is a key component of local authorities' corporate 
governance arrangements. It is essentially the systematic process by which 
key business risks/opportunities are identified, prioritised and controlled so 

as to ensure the achievement of council objectives and commitments. 
 

Risk management activities undertaken throughout the Council ensure that 
risks are effectively identified and appropriately managed. Insurable risks 
directly contribute to the prudent transfer of financial risks across all counci l 

services. 
 

The key dates: 
 
1. Salford returns questionnaires information to Aon 20th Aug 2021 

2. Finalise invitation to tender (ITT) September 03rd 2021 
3. Issue Contract Notice – ITT September 10th 2021 

4. Closing date for Questions from Tenderers September 24th 2021 
5. Closing Date for Return of Tender Submissions October 8th 2021 
6. Final Evaluation completed 5th – 10th of November 2021 

7. Client to make decision to award the tender November 22nd 2021 
8. Issue Alcatel letters to successful and unsuccessful Tenderers   

December 03rd 2021 – start of the 10-day standstill period in 
December 2021 

9. Issue final award letters to Tenderers December 14th 2021 

2.  
Additional value is being sought from the new contracts award criteria, 

including 15% social value as well as improved cover arrangements. This 
would leave the remaining 85% to be split between quality and price. 

 
 

 

 
 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

Councils Financial Strategy including the Council’s Stop loss programme, i.e., its 
approach to reserving for insurance losses up to its self-insured retention limit per 

claim and its agreed aggregate stop-loss arranged with insurers. To do this, it 
purchases an annual external actuarial report to assess its exposure.  

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  

N/A. 

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   

N/A 

Page 8



3 
 

 
 

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 

See below. 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: supplied by Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323 
 

The Council must ensure that appropriate insurance arrangements are in place to 
protect the Council's assets and potential liabilities.  

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Joanne Hardman – Chief Finance Officer 

 
There is provision within current resources (Revenue Budget) to meet the proposed 
cost. 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Emma Heyes, Category Manager, 

6243  
 
The Council’s current insurance broker AON will lead on the tender. The intention 

would be to issue a mini-competition tender through the Yorkshire Purchasing 
Organisation Insurance Framework.  All suppliers will be invited to bid. 

 
 
HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  

 
N/A 

 
 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: 

 
N/A 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

N/A 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Cliff Peacock – Risk & Insurance Manager 
TEL NO: 0161 607 6980 

 
 
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  

None.

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Part 1: Open to the public 
 

 
 

REPORT OF 
 

The Strategic Director for Service Reform 

 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 

 
ON 

 
28 July 2021 

 

 
  

TITLE:   Approval to Award the Contract for Fixed Term Support and Maintenance 
Service for Northgate to Host our services, Council Tax, Business Rates, Housing 

Benefits and Council Tax Reduction 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

That Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract for Fixed Term Support 
and Maintenance Service for Northgate to Host our services, Council Tax, Business 
Rates, Housing Benefits and Council Tax Reduction as detailed in the table below: 

 

Detail required Answers 

Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project 
Fixed Term Support and Maintenance Service 

for Northgate to Host our services, Council Tax, 
Business Rates, Housing Benefits and Council 

Tax Reduction 

Name of Successful Contractor  NEC Software Solutions (formerly known as 
Northgate Public Services Limited) 

Supplier Registration Number 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
9338960 

Type of organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
Private Limited Company 

Status of Organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
Non-SME 

 

Contract Value £266,459.79 Per Annum (estimated average) 

Contract Duration  5 years 

Contract Start Date  01/07/2021 

Contract End Date  30/06/2026 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5b



Detail required Answers 
Optional Extension Period 1 1 Year 

Optional Extension Period 2 1 Year 

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? 

Procurement Board (extension > £150k) 

Contact Officer (Name & number) Steve Fry 0161 793 3641 

Lead Service Group 

 

Service Reform & Development 

 

How the contract was procured? 

(To be supplied by procurement) 
Direct Award 

Framework Details (where applicable) 

(Procurement body, framework 
reference & title, start/ end date 

DAS Framework RM3821, Data and 
Applications Solution, Lot 2a business 

applications 

Funding Source Revenue Budget 

Ethical Contractor 
Mayor’s Employment Charter 

Committed to sign up to charter. 

  

  

 

 
Accredited Living Wage Employer  

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

   
This report is seeking approval from the Procurement Board for the continued 

contract with NEC Software Solutions (NEC) (formerly known as Northgate Public 

Services Limited), included is the ongoing annual payment of the support and 

maintenance contract for the software application that supports the administration of 

Council Tax, Business Rates, Housing Benefits and Council Tax Reduction. This 

also includes approval to migrate hosting to NEC of Revenues and Benefits. 

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

None 

 
 
KEY DECISION:   

 
Yes, the total contract value is valued over £350k over the full term.

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 12



DETAILS: 
 

The NEC Revenues and Benefits application has been used in the administration of 
Council Tax, Business Rates, Housing Benefits and Council Tax Reduction since 

2005. NEC provide and support the application programs, bespoke programs and 
interfaces and have full right and liberty to market and licence the program(s). All 
Intellectual Property rights in the application program(s), source materials and any 

updates shall remain the property of NEC, NEC are the only supplier who can 
therefore provide support and maintenance for the software.  

 
The NEC Revenues and Benefits Applications require this high level of support to 
achieve optimal performance to address and correct system problems before they 

have an impact on service availability. 
 

Under the Support maintenance contract NEC provide Consultants with 
comprehensive technical knowledge of the software, technical solutions, and 
notification services to advise on known software issues workarounds and fixes and 

new software releases and updates to meet legislative requirements. NEC also 
provides access to technical information, user guides and telephone support.  

 
If during the support term any of the Programs become redundant or obsolete due to 
legislative changes, Salford City Council can terminate the affected support services 

in respect of those Programs. 
 

During the last three years the Council has undergone significant changes in respect 
of the digitalisation of services under the Transformation Programme. This has 
resulted in the investment of additional software that integrates with NEC to 

automate some of the services that would normally be manually processed. These 
products were brought onboard to streamline and digitalise some of the public facing 

and back-office processing of forms that are used in the administration of Council 
Tax and Benefits. 
 

We are now entering into a new phase with NEC hosting all our services which 
includes the following. 

                                                                      Deliverables  

Blue Badge CMS – Blue Badge CMS Discretionary Housing – PWS and Back 

Office 

Citizen Access - Benefits Citizen Access – Discretionary Housing 

Payments 

Citizen Access – Landlords Risk Based Verification – New Claims 

Citizen Access – Full Case Review Risk Based Verification – Change in 

Circumstances 

Citizen Access – Benefits Notifications  

 

Module Sub Modules 

M3 Land Charges Land Charges 

Council Tax Reduction FINDSCHEME, Council Tax Reduction 

Page 13



Council Tax Empty Property Premium Discount 

Monitoring, Council Tax 

Open Transactions (API’s) Benefit standard APIs, Revenue 

standard APIs 

Council Tax Benefits Council Tax Benefits, Housing Benefits 

Creditors Creditors, Debtors 

AUDDIS, ADDACS & ARUDD AUDDIS, ADDACS & ARUDD 

Flat File Billing Flat File Billing 

NEC Fraud NEC Fraud 

Legislation Replacement Benefit Period Software, 

Historical Legislation, IB/ESA S&M 

Revenues Automation Experian Extract (Recovery) 

NDR NDR 

Summary Letters Summary Letters 

Scan Application SHBE Multi File 

Scan Application Scan Application 

LSVT / RSL Interface LSVT / RSL Interface 

PMQA PMQA 

SMS Messaging SMS Messaging 

Query View Query View 

Bespoke Licence – non repeatable 

licence 

RBX234 – Housing Association, 

RBX230 – Creditors Interface, RBX292 

– Early Earning Report, RBX249 – 

Calculations Package, RBX279 – 

Suspend Claim Parts, RBX280 – 

Request C/Tax Bill, RBX283 – 

Create/Update Occupancy 

CTR Calculation Restrict allowance to 2 children 

Additional Database Support Additional Database Support 

Citizen Access Citizen Access – eBilling (3rd Party) 

Integration Active Directory Integration 

Notepad Loader Notepad Loader 

Single Sign On User Authentication 

 

We currently have the NEC Revenues and Benefits solution hosted onsite. We have 
identified that the move to the cloud hosted by NEC will also provide greater 
benefits, which include:  

 Greater system availability 

 Less time needed from our infrastructure team (1 member of staff) for Oracle 

upgrades, OS updates, release upgrades, monitoring web servers, application 

Page 14



backups, restores, looking after OS, file store. This is 50% of staff time per 

year. 

 No on-prem servers or databases required and associated support. 

 Opportunity to reduce Oracle licences at next renewal. 

 Costs are static over term. 

 Cloud agreement has no consumption costs, fixed hosting costs, which would 

not be the case with some solutions e.g., on premise you may need to buy 

more server power, cloud services more compute. 

 Number of modules provided free of charge saving £16k Capital costs 

(including Active Directory for SSO) 

 Migration costs provided free of charge (initial quoted £50k) 

 A hosted solution aligns with our technology roadmap of moving to the cloud. 

 Year End processing faster / Batch processing faster 

 

Recommendation  

That the Procurement Board supports and approves the award of the contract to 
NEC Public Services for a 5-year period for the Support Maintenance of the 
Revenues and Benefits. There will be an option to extend the contract for a further 2 
12-month periods after the 5 years. 

The basis for this recommendation is given because at this time it is not in the 
interest of the council to go to tender for this service for the following reasons: 

 The cost of changing would outweigh any benefits achieved.  

 The internal time and cost to change is significant.  

 The current service suitably meets our needs, and the operational risk would 
need further evaluation. 

 Having the service hosted will reduce the single point of failure regarding the 
management of the system. 

 

NEC have proposed a 5 year + 2-year extension fixed term support agreement and 
this will fix our support costs over that period. This also includes modules free of 

charge. 
 

 Loader Module - £4,500 saving over 5 years. 

 Benefit Seminar - £1,700 saving over 5 years. 

 Active Directory Module - £4,500 saving over 5 years. 

 
 

Total Contract Costs: 
 

Year 1 £221,961.00 

Years 2-5 £266,459.79 (per annum) 
Total (5 years) £1,287,800.16 

Optional year 6 £274,453.58 (inc. RPI) 

Optional year 7 £282,687.19 (inc. RPI) 

 

Page 15



Current annual charges: £186,551.92 (if staying on the current contract this would be 
subject to RPI each year) 

 
As we are currently in the last year of our existing contract, we have already paid 

£186,551.92for this year’s licences, support and maintenance. Therefore, the total 
contact amount (year 1) will be reduced pro-rata to reflect this. 
 

There are several potential savings from a Fixed Term Support agreement: 

 One annual invoice removing additional costs from processing multiple 
invoices throughout the year. 

 All Support and Maintenance charges are due from a single date making 
budgeting easier. 

 Dependant of the term of the agreement, the annual charge can be fixed for 
the term, further simplifying budgeting, and giving a known, fixed commitment. 

 

SOCIAL VALUE: 
 

NEC are committed to offering 2.5% social value spread over the five-year contract 
term. They are also committed to working with us to identify suitable charities or 
causes on a yearly basis working towards closing the gap as part of our Digital 

Inclusion agenda. 
  

This works out at £5,735.78 per annum, totalling £26,678.90 over the five-year term. 
 
 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

None 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  

N/A 

 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   

There are several risks in not approving the exception which include no supplier 

support to fix software issues or assistance to bring in legislative changes, increased 
risk of service disruption affecting administration of Council Tax, Business Rates, 

Housing Benefit, Council Tax Reduction and Customer self-serve functions such as 
online benefit applications.  

Currently we have 1 database administrator, so we have a single point of failure. 

Moving to the new hosting service NEC have SLA’s they must adhere to, meaning 
less downtime, giving us more system usage.

 

Page 16



 
 

SOURCE OF FUNDING:  

Revenue Budget

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Tony Hatton 219 6323 The Shared Legal 
Service  

 
When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services, or the 

execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract 
may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. CSO’s state that a 

framework arrangement should be used unless there is an auditable reason not to do 
so. The proposed award of the contract follows a direct award to NEC in accordance 

with the Crown Commercial Services Data and Applications Solution Framework. 
  
The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement/evalua tion 

process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council, 
as and when those services are required. If they are required, then the Council will 

undertake an exercise to call off the services from one or more of the providers who 
have been selected to be on the framework and this may be through a number of ways 
such as mini-competition and direct allocation (as here) depending on the 

circumstances. A contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen 
provider/s 

The Council will need to comply with the terms of the framework agreement to permit 
direct award, namely that the software products which the Council is purchasing are 
intrinsically linked to the system already being used. The procurement procedures 

therefore appear robust and compliant with the requirements of the Council’s CSO’s 
and PCR. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: Jo Garvin Finance Officer Ext 2873  
 

It has been confirmed that the expenditure costs of £266,459.79 will be funded from 
the ICT Delivery Service Reform Systems Revenue Budget. 

 
Expenditure Code: C1033 5740 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17



 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Emma Heyes, Category Manager 
 

This award of contract is being made through a direct award, through the Crown 
Commercial Services Data and Application Solutions Framework, RM3821, Lot 2a 
Business Applications. 

 
Direct award is permissible providing the products you are buying are intrinsically 

linked to a system that is already being used by the Customer. 
 
The DAS Call-Off paperwork will need completion to form the contract between the 

Council and NEC. 

 

 
HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Steve Hulme Strategic HR & OD Manager 
  

There are no direct implications to workforce numbers or structures as a result of the 
proposed extension. 

 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Michael Hemingway 0161 793 

3209 
 

We will be saving energy and reducing our own carbon footprint by moving to a 
hosted environment

 
 
 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Steven Fry 

 

 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  
 
None 

 

Page 18



Part 1: Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 

 
The Strategic Director for Place 

 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 

 
4th August 2021 

 

 
  

TITLE:   Approval to Award the Contract for provision of new furniture in the areas to 
be refurbished of the Civic centre, Swinton. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

That Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract for the provision of new 
furniture at the Civic Centre, Swinton, as detailed in the table below: 

 

Detail required Answers 

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project 

Provision on new furniture in refurbished areas 
of the Civic Centre Campus 

Name of Successful Contractor  H Jenkinson & Company Ltd 

Supplier Registration Number 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
00169844 

Type of organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
Public Limited Company 

Status of Organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) SME 

Contract Value £ Full Project £316,000 

Contract Duration  19 weeks 

Contract Start Date  09/08/2021 

Contract End Date  17/12/2021 

Optional Extension Period 1                                   N/A 

Optional Extension Period 2                                   N/A 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5c



 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above mentioned 
contract. 

 
 

 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

 
Exempt under Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
 

‘Tender Submissions and Evaluation Documents’ 

 
 
KEY DECISION:   

No 

 
 

DETAILS:  
 
1. Background  

 
Salford City Council is going through a period of unprecedented and ongoing change 

and the need for different ways of working has been identified.   
 
As part of the process the Council are looking at increasing organisational and 

individual performance through enabling people to work smarter utilising digital tools 

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? 

N/A 

Contact Officer (Name & number) Les Woolhouse 07713 786 093 

Lead Service Group 

 
Place 

How the contract was procured? 

(to be supplied by procurement) 
Direct Award 

Framework Details (where applicable) 

(procurement body, framework 
reference & title, start/ end date 

YPO Office Furniture Solutions and Associated 
Services 001704 

Funding Source Capital Programme 

Ethical Contractor 
Mayor’s Employment Charter 

Committed to sign up to charter 

  

  

 

 
Accredited Living Wage Employer  

Page 20



and implementing behavioural changes in the way they work and the best places this 
can be completed. 

 
The current accommodation on the civic centre campus is outdated and does not 

provide suitable workspaces that are in alignment with the Council’s corporate 
strategy to enable the workforce to work smarter.  Partial Refurbishment of the 
accommodation will support the implementation of the MyWork principles and 

programme.  
 

A separate report has been recommended for approval at Procurement Board on 
28th July for the fabric element of the refurbishment to the accommodation in Unity 
House, Innovation House, Phase 1 of Civic Centre and part of the Old Town Hall in 

the regeneration corridor. This report is seeking approval to Award the Contract for 
provision of new furniture in the areas to be refurbished. 

 
The existing furniture has been reviewed in detail to mitigate expenditure and 
furniture of appropriate type, size and condition has been retained.  

 
The furniture being supplied will provide the capability to reconfigure the working 

spaces to a task based environment which will provide choice and variety of 
worksettings within the civic campus.  The creation of these spaces will enable and 
support individuals and teams to operate in a dynamic manner which follows the 

MyWork principles and facilitate the new operating model, hybrid or blended way of 
working.  The workspaces created will provide areas for collaboration, team and 

project work, as well as individual spaces for people to work at and touchdown or 
quiet focus work.  The worksettings are: 

 Focussed workstations – for individual work that requires concentration, with 

anticipated full day usage 

 Touchdown workstations – individual work or quick tasks, anticipated usage 

up to 1 hour 

 Individual work-pods – individual work for focus/concentration, making digital 

calls, anticipated usage 1-2 hours 

 Quiet rooms – confidential work, digital calls, anticipated usage 1-2 hours 

 Informal meeting - collaborative spaces for teams to have informal meetings, 

anticipated usage up to 3 hours 

 Booths – collaborative spaces for informal meetings which include visual 

privacy, anticipated usage up to 3 hours 

 Project space – individual/collaborative work areas for working together on 

specific projects, anticipated usage full day or longer 

 Breakout – informal touchdown area for 1-1 conversations/phone calls, 

anticipated usage up to 1 hour 

All the desking will include cable management and acoustic screens will be used to 

create the booths/quiet rooms. 

The furniture style and layout will be completed to a corporate standard that can be 

applied to any workplace in the Council’s portfolio. All new desking, storage and tables  
have a substantial guarantee.  
 

Page 21



 
2. The Procurement Process 

The supply of this furniture project is intended to be awarded as a direct call off contract 
under the YPO Office Furniture Solutions and Associated Services Framework 

Agreement 001704. 

The framework has been designed to provide a fully tailored office furniture solution 
including offering a range of products and design specifications to suit individual 

requirements. 

H Jenkinson & Company Ltd offer a substantial discount on the items that they provide 

in their catalogue. The company have excellent experience of supplying to Local 
Authorities and have provided suitable furniture for use in previous Salford Council 
Office Accommodation projects.  

 
3. Social Value  

The framework included social value as part of the tender process with an overall 
weighting of 17.5%.  This includes: 

 All suppliers/providers must demonstrate, annually their approach to social 

value with supporting evidence of policies, procedures and/or case studies 

 All suppliers/providers must submit an annual report to give their annual 

improvements regarding sustainability performance within their organisation 

 Awarded providers have given evidence of sustainable/environmental policies 

and procedure in place which support environmental initiatives and sustainable 
procurement throughout the supply chain 

 H Jenkinson & Company Ltd have confirmed that their company pays above 

the living wage foundation rates, moving forward they will look to become an 
accredited living wage supplier.   

 
 They will assist in local initiatives such as clearing up litter or the planting of a 

tree if that is something identified as a social need. 

 

 The company proactively recycle furniture by either ensuring are sent to a 

dedicated recycling site or work with local homeless charities in providing 
surplus items that can be used as items in setting up homes. 

 

 H Jenkinson & Company Ltd are willing to engage with local schools with 
mentoring/work experience.  They have also offered to arrange a tour of the 

recycling facility in Knowsley to assist student development. 

 H Jenkinson & Company Ltd support their employees with 2 weeks paid 

voluntary work to local initiatives. 

 

Page 22



KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  

 
The furniture style and workspace requirements have been produced following a 
workforce survey and service consultation by independent specialists appointed by 

the MyWork Board to ensure that policies, practices, events and decision making 
processes are fair and do not present barriers to participation or disadvantage any 

protected groups. 
 

 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  High. 
 

The current desk layouts and furniture provision is no longer suitable for the councils 
needs in delivering its frontline and essential services.  Following the coronavirus 
pandemic it has been established that the workspaces currently provided are no 

longer suitable and new fit for purpose workstations, project desking and breakout 
area furniture is required to a substantially smaller area.   

 
This will provide a safe flexible working areas to assist in the delivery of Council 
services to the residents of Salford. 

An early award will mitigate the risk of a cost increase and our suppliers are advising 
a likely 10% market led inflationary price increase on furniture supply. 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 

The funding will come from the 2021/22 Capital Programme 
Expenditure code: C00210 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: The Shared Legal Service - Contact officer and 
telephone number: Tony Hatton - Principal Solicitor tel. 0161 219 6323.  

 
When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services, or the 

execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract 
may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. The proposed award of 

this contract follows a selection exercise to enable a direct call-off in accordance with 
the YPO Office Furniture Solutions and Associated Services Framework Agreement 

for the supply of office furniture. 
 
The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement/ evaluation 

process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council, 
as and when those services are required. If they are required then the Council will 

undertake an exercise to call off the services from one or more of the providers who 
have been selected to be on the framework and this may be through any number of 

Page 23



ways (mini-competition or direct allocation) depending on the circumstances. A 
contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen provider/s. The 

proposed award of a contract in this instance follows a single call-off in accordance 
with the YPO Office Furniture Solutions and Associated Services Framework 

Agreement selection criteria. 
 
The Council will need to have followed the procedure set out in the framework 

agreement to ensure the procurement process is compliant in accordance with the 
procurement procedures under the YPO Office Furniture Solutions and Associated 

Services Framework Agreement. Following the selection exercise it is proposed to 
directly award the contract to H Jenkinson & Company Ltd for the supply of furniture. 
The procurement procedures therefore appear robust and compliant with the 

requirements of the Council’s CSO’s and PCR. 
  

Legal Services will assist with preparing any contractual documentation upon receipt 
of instructions to ensure the Council’s position and interest are protected.  
 

  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: Chris Hesketh, Head of Financial 
Management, x2668. 
 

The works will be funded by the MyWorks capital scheme, included in the 2021/22 
capital programme in the sum of £900,000. Within the scheme, there is a budget 

available of £316,000 to cover the costs for the provision of furniture.  

 
 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  Deborah Derbyshire (Category 
Manager tel 0161 686 6244 

 
Salford Council’s Contractual Standing Orders state that where there is a suitable 
framework this must be used unless there is an auditable reason not to do so. 

 
YPO Office Furniture Solutions and Associated Services 001704 is an OJEU 

compliant framework and has the option to direct award with supplier of our choice.  
 
H Jenkinson & Company Ltd was selected as the only provider able to meet the 

Council’s requirements based on the technical specification produced by the Property 
Services Team.  

 

 
HR IMPLICATIONS: Sam Betts, Assistant Director HR & OD 

 
Whilst there are no direct workforce implications arising from the award of this 

contract the works being undertaken will support and enable the safe and phased 
return to the workplace with staff working in a hybrid way in line with the Council’s 
MyWork programme. 

Page 24



 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:  

 
No significant Climate Change implications in this project. All projects are developed 

to meet or exceed current legislation and requirements relating to energy efficiency 
and carbon reduction targets. Projects are required to support the Council’s objectives 
of becoming carbon neutral by 2028.  

 
The works will be programmed to minimise the traffic impact in the area.  Any waste 

materials will be removed and taken to a transfer station for systematic sorting and 
recycling to ensure minimal landfill waste. 
  

Sustainability plans would be targeted to also align with opportunities to continue to 
deliver social value outcomes 

 
___________________________________________________________________ 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: All Service areas impacted by the changes. 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
Les Woolhouse Head of Buildings and Facilities 07713 786 093

 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): All wards

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 Guidance for members of the public on the return to face to face Council meetings
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 28 July 2021
	5a Request for Approval to Go Out To Tender - Insurance Catastrophe Cover
	5b Request for Approval - Contract Award - Fixed Term Support and Maintenance Service - Council Tax, Business Rates, Housing Benefits and Council Tax Reduction
	5c Request for Approval - Contract Award - Civic Centre Refurbishment - Furniture

